Notice of Corporate and Community Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
Date:

Thursday, 19 May 2022 at 6.00 pm

Venue:

Committee Suite, Civic Centre, Poole BH15 2RU

Membership:
Chairman: TBC
Vice Chairman: TBC
Cllr H Allen
Cllr L Allison
Cllr M Andrews
Cllr S Bartlett

Cllr L Dedman
Cllr J Edwards
Cllr M Earl
Cllr A Filer

Cllr N Hedges
Cllr R Rocca
Cllr L Williams
VACANCY

All Members of the Corporate and Community Overview and Scrutiny Committee are
summoned to attend this meeting to consider the items of business set out on the agenda
below.
The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following
link:
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5331
If you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please
contact: Claire Johnston - 01202 123663 or email:claire.johnston@bcpcouncil.gov.uk
Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 454668 or
email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

GRAHAM FARRANT
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
11 May 2022

BCP Council Civic Centre, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY

Available online and
on the Mod.gov app

This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk

susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

AGENDA
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public
1.

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence from Councillors.

2.

Substitute Members
To receive information on any changes in the membership of the
Committee.
Note – When a member of a Committee is unable to attend a meeting of a
Committee or Sub-Committee, the relevant Political Group Leader (or their
nominated representative) may, by notice to the Monitoring Officer (or their
nominated representative) prior to the meeting, appoint a substitute
member from within the same Political Group. The contact details on the
front of this agenda should be used for notifications.

3.

Election of Chairman
To elect a Chairman for the Corporate and Community Overview and
Scrutiny Committee for the 2022/23 municipal year.

4.

Election of Vice-Chair
To elect a Vice-Chair for the Corporate and Community Overview and
Scrutiny Committee for the 2022/23 municipal year.

5.

Public Issues
To receive any public questions, statements or petitions submitted in
accordance with the Constitution. Further information on the requirements
for submitting these is available to view at the following link:https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=15
1&Info=1&bcr=1
The deadline for the submission of public questions is 4 clear working days
before the meeting.
The deadline for the submission of a statement is midday the working day
before the meeting.
The deadline for the submission of a petition is 10 working days before the
meeting.

6.

Update on BCP Transformation
The Committee will receive a presentation from Julian Osgathorpe,
Corporate Director for Transformation and Resources on the current status
of the transformation programme. Following this there will be an opportunity
for questions from members of the Committee.
Please note that it is possible that discussions on this item may require that
the Committee needs to make a decision to hear part of the item in exempt

session due to the the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in
Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act and that the public
interest in withholding the information outweighs such interest in disclosing
the information.’
7.

Scrutiny of the Fly-Tipping and Fly-Posting Enforcement Pilot Cabinet
Report

1 - 22

To consider the Fly-Tipping and Fly-Posting Enforcement Pilot Review
report scheduled for Cabinet consideration on 25 May 2022.
The Committee is asked to scrutinise and comment on the report and if
required to make recommendations or observations as appropriate.
Cabinet members invited to attend for this item: Councillor Mark Anderson,
Portfolio Holder for Environment and Place; Councillor Bobbie Dove,
Portfolio Holder for Community Safety and Regulatory Services; Councillor
Nicola Greene, Portfolio Holder for Council Priorities and Delivery.
Officers invited to attend for this item: Jess Gibbons, Chief Operations
Officer and Matthew King, Regulation Team Manager
The Cabinet report for this item is included with the agenda for
consideration by the Committee.
8.

Forward Plan

23 - 44

The Corporate and Community Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked
to consider and identify work priorities for its next meeting pending a wider
review of its forward plan at a future meeting.
9.

Future Meeting Dates
The Council at its meeting on 10 May agreed to delegate authority to the
Overview and Scrutiny bodies to agree their own meeting dates for the
2022/23 and 2023/24 municipal years.
The Council agreed that there would be 5 meetings scheduled in each
municipal year. These will need to be set with reference to the current
Council Calendar.

No other items of business can be considered unless the Chairman decides the matter is urgent for reasons that
must be specified and recorded in the Minutes.

Agenda Item 7
CABINET

Report subject

Fly-tipping and Fly-Posting Enforcement Pilot Review

Meeting date

25 May 2022

Status

Public Report

Executive summary

On 26 May 2021 Cabinet considered the report Fly-tipping and Flyposting Enforcement Pilot and resolved that:
(a) Cabinet approves the commencement of a 12-month pilot
scheme to deploy a suitable qualified contractor to undertake
investigations and prosecutions of fly-tipping and fly-posting
incidents;
(b) Cabinet agrees to receive a further report following 6 months of
this pilot, which will include recommendations for the future of this
service; and
(c) Cabinet approves the levels of fines for relevant offences as per
paragraph 10.
This report provides a review of the first 6 months of the pilot which,
from September 2021 has been delivered by Waste Investigations
Support and Enforcement Ltd (WISE), together with
recommendations for the future of the service. WISE have been
contracted on a cost-neutral basis to investigate and enforce
against offenders of fly-tipping and fly-posting and ensure
businesses meet legal requirements to manage waste lawfully and
responsibly.

Recommendations

It is RECOMMENDED that:(a)

Cabinet approves an extension to the fly-tipping and flyposting pilot with WISE until November 2022, with
additional emphasis on:
i.
ii.
iii.

(b)

effective and increased communications with
public and businesses
enhanced joint working with the Council’s Waste
Compliance Officers
consideration of learning from best practice in
other Councils

A further Cabinet report be brought in November 2022
with recommendations for the service long-term

Page 1

Reason for
recommendations

Prior to this Pilot, the Council did not investigate all reports of flytipping and had limited data on the scale of the problem in the area.
The Pilot has delivered its original objectives to investigate all
reports of fly-tipping and fly-posting, to take enforcement action
where an offence has been committed and fundamentally supports
the Council’s Cleaner, Greener, Safer campaign.
The initial pilot period presents too short a timescale for the data
collected by WISE to date to fully illustrate the challenges these
environmental crimes cause BCP Council. Extending the pilot will
provide further understanding to help enable officers and Members
make the best decision for how the service operates longer term.
A more effective communications campaign will help mitigate some
of the adverse reactions by those found to have committed an
offence and closer working with the Council’s W aste Compliance
Officers will ensure better co-ordination of efforts and improve the
public’s understanding of the impact that fly-tipping and fly-posting
has on the environment.
Further time with the Pilot will enable officers to speak to other
Councils who are exhibiting best practice with regards to deterrents
against fly-tipping and other environmental crimes and this
information and subsequent recommendations will be provided at
the further Cabinet meeting in November 2022.

Portfolio Holder(s):

Councillor Mark Anderson, Councillor Bobbie Dove and Councillor
Nicola Greene

Corporate Director

Jess Gibbons, Chief Operations Officer

Report Authors

Matthew King, Regulation Team Manager

Wards

Council-wide

Classification

For Decision

Ti t l e:

Background
1. The Council has powers under the Environmental Protection Act 1990 to deal
with incidents of fly-tipping and littering. Householders and businesses have a
duty of care to ensure their waste is collected by a licensed waste carrier, and
businesses also have a duty to ensure sufficient measures are in place to
manage their commercial waste. Waste management is essential for both our
residential and business communities to prevent complaints about the street
scene and to prevent public health issues arising from rotting waste.
2. The Council has powers under the Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003 to deal with
fly-posting, the displaying of promotional materials or adverts without
permission on public furniture.

Page 2

3. Enforcement of fly-tipping and fly-posting varied between legacy authorities,
and the pilot aims to harmonise the approach and ensure a consistency.
4. Since commencement of the service in September 2021, WISE has
investigated all reported incidents of fly-tipping and fly-posting and has taken
enforcement action where an offence has been committed. This has mostly
been through issuing of fixed penalty notices (FPNs) on individuals.
5. One of the recommendations from the Cabinet decision in May 2021 was to
present a report of the pilot’s first six months of operation (Sept – March) and to
include further recommendations for the future of the service.
Findings of Review
6. WISE has delivered significant outcomes as outlined in Appendices 1 and 2,
including 1,538 fly-tipping investigations and service of 198 FPNs. There is
now a consequence for the actions of offenders, and the pilot has addressed
the frustration of residents and businesses who previously reported incidents
that would either not be actioned or would be limited to education and
engagement only.
7. Commercial waste management has improved significantly since the start of
this pilot with additional contracts in place in many areas of BCP Council,
particularly Bournemouth Town Centre.
Previously efforts relied upon
engagement only, but with limited success. Officers from the Council’s
Environment teams have commented that the pilot has made a positive impact
on areas where problems were prevalent. In total, 249 businesses have been
inspected to ensure compliance with waste requirements for commercial
premises and 189 have been found to have had inadequate measures.
Photographs in Appendix 3 illustrate some of the improvements to problematic
areas.
8. All incidents of fly-tipping and fly-posting can now be investigated in a timely
manner and there is capacity for WISE officers to investigate the hard-toevidence cases that are otherwise challenging for Council officers to
investigate amongst other competing demands.
9. The FPN payment rate at 67.5% is comparable to the industry average of 70%.
Efforts will be made to improve through increase messaging that payment of a
fine will avoid the Court action that could result in heavier fines and a criminal
record. The Council is able to utilise 10% of the recovered monies for this
service-related work.
10. Appendix 1 details the challenges and setbacks raised during the pilot to date.
Challenges around enforcement were inevitable and predicted, although
learning from a number of cases has aided the improvement of procedures.
The complaint rate is considered low, with just 7 escalated to Council officers
out of 1,797 investigations that WISE have achieved (0.38%). Officers will
continue to work with the contractor to ensure this remains the case. Whilst
there is no formal appeal process to an FPN, 2 have been withdrawn and
cautions issued in their place.

Page 3

Options Appraisal
11. Several options have been considered for the continuance of this pilot, taking
account of the outcomes and experience of delivery to date;
Option 1 - Maintain the contract in the current format
12. The pilot has delivered its objectives to date within a short space of time,
although not without challenges in some areas. Managers and officers have
learned lessons from various cases, in particular from those where potential
offenders have claimed to be leaving items for charitable reasons. Accordingly,
some operational procedures have been altered, albeit there are other
challenges identified in this report that have yet to be addressed.
13. The contract in its current format is cost-effective and the Council is able to
reinvest 10% of the fines WISE recover into public engagement and legal
support for more serious cases, or where offenders have failed to pay their fine.
14. The 10% recovery to the Council enabled full engagement work to be carried
out over the Christmas and New Year period, in view of the likely excessive
waste at this time of year. There are also 2 cases being considered for
prosecution. An assessment on whether the legal costs can be covered by the
10% fine recovery will be provided following the conclusion of these cases. It is
important to note that only cases in the public interest, whereby the fine is not
paid, will proceed through legal proceedings.
15. The system used by WISE captures the most accurate picture of how much
demand is generated by fly-tipping across BCP Council areas. Due to the
nature of how reports reach the Council and the multiple systems that these
are logged, this is an important feature of the contract and was one of the initial
aims of the pilot. However, 7 months is a comparatively short amount of time to
fully consider the true impact of this pilot, and hence further data will be
collated over the coming months.
16. There could be a reputational risk to the Council where enforcement actions
are misrepresented in the media, although to some degree this is inevitable
with any enforcement-related activity. There is of course a reputational risk of
failing to investigate fly-tipping.
17. Significant engagement with members of the public who may inadvertently
mismanage their waste has taken place, although many people choose not to
engage, or accept any fault, which consequently leads to enforcement action.
Nevertheless, should there be a move to reduce the level of enforcement and
move to an approach of engagement and education, the Council would need to
find additional resource to compensate WISE for the reduction in FPN income.
18. This option will necessitate increased public messaging about the rules
regarding waste and the work that WISE are undertaking. There is limited
capacity in the Comms team to undertake this, and hence there may be a cost
implication, although Community Engagement Officers could help deliver some
of the messaging.
Option 2 - Maintain the contract with enhanced engagement from Environmental
Health and Community Engagement
19. There is some scope to maintain the contract as it is currently operating whilst
increasing the input from two Waste Compliance Officers from the

Page 4

Environmental Health team. This would likely result in more face-to-face
education with businesses and members of the public, potentially reducing the
inadvertent breach of legislation and consequent fines.
20. Engagement and education have taken place for a number of years in legacy
authorities. Such engagement appears to have been unsuccessful due to
continued increases in mismanagement of business waste and fly-tipping.
With WISE now available for escalation where engagement fails, the pilot could
help deliver more favourable outcomes.
21. This option could create some operational challenges, particularly with
businesses where additional engagement has been carried out. Any instruction
to refrain from service of FPNs on businesses who have recently arranged a
new waste contract will likely mean the pilot cannot be run on a cost-neutral
basis. The costs to the Council would be circa £400 per day. The input
required by the two Waste Compliance Officers would also take these officers
away from their current role of dealing with waste enforcement work that falls
outside the WISE contract.
Option 3 - Maintain the contract and introduce issuing of formal warnings for many
first offences
22. WISE could be instructed to issue formal warnings to individuals who have not
been found guilty of a previous offence. While it is not possible to prove that
many people who have been fined through the pilot have likely mismanaged
waste for a significant period of time, it is a reasonable conclusion that people
having historically seen little or no consequence for mismanagement of waste.
They have therefore become accustomed to placing waste beside overflowing
bins or on the pavement for someone else to pick up, the costs for clearance
for which will have fallen to the Council.
23. Warnings can be issued to anyone who is found guilty of an offence for the first
time, but this would create significant operational challenges and result in a
requirement to provide funding to WISE. This would potentially cause further
frustration to residents already aggrieved by ongoing waste issues in their
community.
24. This option, alongside a reduction in income from fines to businesses without
proof of a suitable waste contract, would cost the Council approximately
£26,000 for the remainder of the contract from 1 June 2022 to 31 August 2022
and would reduce the income from fines to reinvest in the service by an
estimated £6,000.
Option 4 - Cease the WISE contract and revert to in-house service provision
25. The Council could give WISE 30 days’ notice to end the contract at any time
and revert to in-house service provision.
26. Current capacity within teams would not result in an effective service without
further investment and it would take a significant time to implement. A better
system for logging all fly-tipping incidents would also be required to help ensure
officers understand the true demand of fly-tipping investigations in the area.
Based on the limited data in the first 7 months of the contract, at least 2 fulltime posts, administration support and resources would be required at circa
£100,000 per annum with on-costs. Additional funding for legal costs to pursue
offenders who have committed a serious offence or have not paid their fine

Page 5

would also be required at an estimated £13,000, this matching the forecast
10% of income currently due to be received from paid fines to WISE.
Option 5 - Mobile CCTV facility in addition to all options
27. The Council has a finite resource for CCTV and there are significant demands
on the current service. CCTV cameras will deter some individuals from
committing fly-tipping offences; however, this does not necessarily mean that
enforcement action can be taken when images are captured, although it would
greatly assist in identification of any vehicles involved if the registration is
captured within the footage.
28. Deployable cameras that can be moved to various locations are currently used
by the Council’s CCTV Team, but there must be a suitable post and power
point for installation, and in some hotspot areas this is not achievable. Surveys
are required prior to consideration of relocating a camera and significant
engagement with residents and businesses in the proposed locality is required,
as well as additional signage and compliance with Surveillance Camera Code.
The Council’s existing team would be required to carry out this work.
29. A mobile CCTV solution is available on the market and can be rented or
purchased. A portable tower with a generator or battery can potentially provide
a short-term solution and depending on the unit, can be moved to other
locations either by Council officers, or the camera providers.
30. A large generator-run portable tower and CCTV unit, moveable by a provider,
can provide a maximum of 10 weeks continuous coverage in an area, but can
only be considered where a van can access the desired location. This can be
hired for £550 per week, with an initial set-up cost of £700 and a cost each time
of £700 to relocate. Alternatively, it can be bought for approximately £30,000,
including 5 relocations a year if a lengthy contract was signed with the provider.
Additional relocations would be £700 each time.
31. A smaller battery-operated unit with an extendable tower and CCTV unit can
provide 2 weeks of coverage before recharging is required. The addition of
solar panels may extend this if the unit is placed in a suitable area to benefit
from this. This is moveable by towing and additional security measures would
be required to help protect against theft or damage. This can be purchased for
£25,000.
32. Any additional CCTV, and particularly mobile units, will also require significant
additional officer time to set-up, manage and ensure compliance. It would
likely work to the benefit of the service in some cases but not in others,
although may act as a deterrent in some hotspot locations. There is a high risk
of displacement of high-volume fly tipping sites to those not covered by CCTV.
Option 6 - Major comms campaign in addition to all options
33. Additional engagement and comms is desirable for any option moving forward
to help people understand the harm that mismanagement of waste, fly-tipping
and fly-posting can do the environment. It is also necessary to educate as
many people as possible what the law is, and what the potential penalties are.
34. The Council’s Communications Team are struggling to meet current demands,
although conversations have taken place with a view to launching a campaign.

Page 6

35. It is likely a contractor would need to be commissioned to provide a successful
comms campaign that may make a real difference to BCP streets in relation to
the service covered by this pilot. It is also acknowledged that demand for the
service will increase shorter term with more residents being aware of how to
report fly-tipping and having confidence action will be taken. This would cost
an estimated £10,000 based on the previous ‘Sort **it Out’ campaign last year.
Summary of Options
36. It is recommended that the Pilot is extended to November 2022 with an
additional emphasis on effective and increased communications with public
and businesses, enhanced joint working with the Council’s Waste Compliance
Officers, and to allow for consideration of learning from best practice in other
Council’s. Additional time will also allow for consideration of accompanying
initiatives such as mobile CCTV options.
37. During this extension, Waste Compliance Officers will be tasked to engage with
and educate residents and businesses on their legal obligations prior to a visit
by the WISE contractors. The focus of the Waste Compliance Officers would
be to target areas with high frequency and high-volume waste complaints. This
would result in greater understanding by residents of waste crime and possibly
fewer complaints or concerns about the nature of the WISE contract. It could
also reduce the amount of time and money spent on clearing side waste.
38. With the introduction of Waste Compliance Officers to areas identified as
experiencing high waste mismanagement, education and warnings would be
issued prior to, or at time of first offence, and WISE officers can then focus their
efforts on those ignoring these rules. This would provide a fair service to
residents in BCP that genuinely are unaware of the law and minimise the
reputational risk to the Council.
39. It is acknowledged that some businesses or residents have genuinely not
known the rules around waste management or appreciated the negative
impact, so a more comprehensive Comms campaign will help address this. It
is apparent that many individuals do know that leaving waste on streets or
outside of bins, or failure to have a contract in place for business waste
breaches regulations. Officers are clear that to make a real difference to our
streets, fly-tipping and mismanagement of waste should be dealt with as a
crime in accordance with the relevant Legislation.
Where mitigating
circumstances are apparent, FPNs will not be served at first call, althoug h
residents and businesses must positively engage with the investigating officers
to help reach this understanding.
40. Lead officers in this Pilot, alongside Communications colleagues will seek best
practice from other Councils where the response to the challenges of fly-tipping
appears to be more seamless and publicising cases where residents have
supported action is commonplace.
41. To date, significant improvements have been made in understanding the level
of fly-tipping and waste issues, but the pilot has presented a short window of
opportunity to gather sufficient data to make informed decisions for the long
term. Extending the Pilot to November 2022 will help ensure officers are in the
best position to make the necessary recommendations for the service, while
giving further time to assess and understand possible areas for improvement.

Page 7

Summary of financial implications
42. If the demand, levels of fines and payments continue at the current rate, the
projected income received by the Council will be £8930 as of 1 September
2022.
43. There are no budget implications for the communications campaign proposed
as the funding of approximately £10,000 is available from the approved
Cleaner, Greener, Safer programme.
Summary of legal implications
44. The recommendations have minimal additional legal implications from those in
the Cabinet report from May 2021. The contract will be extended in its current
form to cover from 1 September 2022 to 30 November 2022 and the Council’s
Procurement Team will be consulted.
45. Should the recommendation not be agreed, the contract may require
alterations with the provider, which may take some time to achieve with
capacity limited in Legal Services.
Summary of human resources implications
46. The additional tasks recommended for the Council’s Waste Compliance
Officers fit with the current role profile and are commensurate with the current
grading.
Summary of sustainability impact
47. The comms campaign together with continued enforcement should result in
less fly-tipping incidents and associated negative environmental impacts.
48. Less litter from ripped bags of fly-tipped waste will result in less potential harm
to wildlife, less waste going down drains and reduced costs for Council
services to clear.
Summary of public health implications
49. Fly-tipping and fly-posting has a detrimental impact on public perception of the
quality of affected environments, including publicly accessible greenspaces.
Public use of greenspaces, and the degree of health & wellbeing benefit
derived from that use, is partly determined by greenspace quality. The
anticipated reduction in fly-tipping and fly-posting will contribute to wider efforts
to maintain and enhance the quality of public greenspace (and the wider public
realm) and associated benefits for public health and wellbeing.
Summary of equality implications
50. There are no adverse effects on protected groups and all communities should
benefit long term from reduced environmental crime with the success of this
pilot. A full equality impact assessment was carried out prior to the agreement
of Cabinet to commence the pilot in May 2021 and this has been reviewed.
There is no change.
Summary of risk assessment
51. There is a continuing risk to the reputation of BCP Council if the proposed pilot
receives adverse commentary or complaints are received regarding the officers
carrying out these duties. As outlined, these have been small in number but

Page 8

have created additional pressures from various parties during the course of the
pilot.
52. A more effective Communications Strategy will be developed to support this
ongoing pilot. Any publicity work will reinforce the key Council values that any
such enforcement activity is not undertaken lightly, or to generate income, but
as a necessary driver to make and keep our communities clean and support
the Council’s Cleaner, Greener, Safer campaign.
Appendices
Appendix 1: Review of Outcomes
Appendix 2: Performance and Data
Appendix 3: Photographs
Appendix 4: Equality Impact Assessment Summary

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10

Review of Outcomes
Investigation of all Reports
1. WISE officers have investigated all reported incidents of fly-tipping and flyposting reported to BCP Council since September 2021. These reports come to
their attention through various channels, including residents reporting an incident
of fly-tipping to the Council’s Street Services Team, direct from ward Members,
or via other Council services.
2. The report is immediately sent to WISE officers who seek to visit as soon as
possible to secure evidence. Once their investigation is complete, a request to
clear the area is sent to Street Services if the waste is on public land, or to the
Council’s Environmental Protection Team if the waste is on private land.
3. Table A in Appendix 2 illustrates incidents reported to WISE and what action has
been taken. An FPN is only issued where the evidence gathered would be
suitable for prosecution through the courts. To secure this evidence, WISE
officers have interviewed suspects under caution, obtained statements from
witnesses and located vehicle keeper details from the Police. Images from
cameras or CCTV has been utilised many times throughout the pilot so far and
has helped identify offenders.
Business Duty of Care Inspections
4. In addition to reactive investigations following a report of fly-tipping, inspections
of businesses have helped to ensure compliance with their ‘Duty of Care’ with
regards waste management. Under the Environmental Protection Act 1990, all
businesses of any kind must contain any waste products safely and dispose of
them properly. Types of waste covered include anything produced as rubbish or
waste material from a commercial business, including by-products. To evidence
that a business has removed their waste appropriately, they require a Duty of
Care Waste Transfer Note document.
5. During the business inspections as outlined in Table B of Appendix 2, WISE
officers have requested by Notice, evidence of suitable waste arrangements be
provided to them for the preceding 12 months within 7 days of the visit. If the
evidence is not forthcoming, or is inadequate, an FPN for failure to comply with
the Legislation has been served.
6. There have been significant problems with mismanagement of business waste,
particularly in Bournemouth Town Centre and surrounding areas. It is clear from
the inspections carried out by WISE that many businesses did not have a
suitable waste contract in place, meaning business waste was falling outside of
the legal waste pathway.
7. During inspections and subsequent engagement, managers and employees of
businesses are educated on the importance of managing their waste
appropriately and the law is explained fully to those willing to listen.
8. As a result of the inspections carried out by WISE and any subsequent action,
more businesses in BCP now have waste contracts ensuring there is a better
management of waste across the area. The Council’s own Commercial Waste
Team has seen an increase in demand since the start of the pilot, although it is
important to note that businesses are advised that other companies can provide
such a service and the business should request a number of quotes for their
needs. There were 50 new customers from October 2019-February 2020 (pre
pandemic) and 80 new customers from October 2021-February 2022, including
many new bag customers from Bournemouth Central.

Page 11

9. The absence of detailed geospatial data at the commencement of the trial makes
it challenging to draw evidenced conclusions about the efficacy of the pilot after
just 6 months of operation. Nevertheless, there has been extremely positive
feedback from colleagues in Environment who often spent many hours of their
work in certain areas and some photos of alleyways near to Commercial
premises in Bournemouth are in Appendix 3 showing the condition before WISE
visited and the condition a number of weeks after.
10. In one incident, WISE officers located rats in a commercial kitchen which was
immediately reported to the Council’s Environmental Health Team. Subsequent
enquiries led to a voluntary closure of the food premises, protecting the public
from likely harm.
Hard-to-Evidence Casework
11. WISE officers have also used initiative to locate offenders from businesses, with
one inspection in Bournemouth leading to a large fly-tipped commercial fridge
being located in a rear alley. Investigations after locating the supplier and
product number, led officers back to the business that had ordered the item and
interviews subsequently led to a confession and an FPN.
Fly-Posting
12. Table C in Appendix 2 illustrates the details and responses to fly-posting by
WISE with 7 FPNs served following 10 reports. Until the start of the contract, the
Council’s Events officers had been attempting to manage reports of fly-posting,
some of which were dangerous by their placement at road junctions, although
no formal enforcement actions had taken place. The pilot has enabled
enforcement action to take place and WISE Officers also remove the offending
item once evidence has been secured, further saving Council resource.
Offenders are then questioned and fined if appropriate under the Anti-Social
Behaviour Act 2003. They are also reminded of the law and the potential
dangers and environmental impact during any engagement.
FPN Recovery Rate
13. As of 3 March 2022, 394 FPNs have been served in total and 67.5% have been
paid. This has resulted in £45,630 in fines being paid to WISE. BCP Council
receive 10% of the recovered fines, which is kept aside for other service-related
work, the cost of administering the contract and legal costs for those cases not
paid that will proceed to Court. No enforcement investigation has been required
by Council officers for these cases, thereby ensuring the pilot is cost-neutral.
14. Those served with a fine are given every opportunity by WISE to pay before
referring the matter to the Council’s Environmental Protection Team for
consideration of prosecution. 101 fines have been paid after the formal 28-day
period offenders have to pay, which has saved valuable time in legal discussions
and potential action that would have taken place otherwise. WISE make
significant effort to engage a party served with an FPN to help avoid a potentially
costly Court case for all and help prevent first offenders from receiving a criminal
record if found guilty.
15. The Environmental Protection Team are currently considering 2 cases whereby
those found guilty of an offence have not paid. This number is likely to increase
as the pilot continues and the 10% the Council receives from the fine income will
support funding for additional legal support. During consideration of progressing
with legal action, the public interest test will be considered as well as specific
detail with the case including any past history, the significance of impact on the
community and the costs associated with the clearance. Any positive result in

Page 12

the Courts will be publicised to help reassure the public and make it clear that
BCP does not tolerate these offences.
Customer Service and Added Value
16. 3 cases that would have met the threshold for an FPN have not been pursued
by WISE due mitigating factors such as health issues, compassionate grounds
and language barriers. WISE are committed to engagement with possible
offenders and always ensure only those who have understood they have
committed an offence are fined and the reputation of the Council is protected as
much as possible.
17. A more comprehensive picture is being developed of locality and types of flytipping. The map in Appendix 2 highlights the areas where enforcement action
has been taken. It illustrates that the demand is most prevalent in Bournemouth
Central, East Cliff and Springbourne, Westbourne and West Cliff and Creekmoor
Wards.
18. Proactive investigations have taken place during patrols by WISE officers,
meaning that some incidents that would not be reported to the Council result in
action and clearance, sometimes more quickly than would have been previously.
While this adds some pressure to busy teams, it adds value to the residents,
businesses and visitors of BCP.
Review of Challenges
Conduct Against Officers
19. As with all enforcement work, there are challenges where those who knowingly
or unknowingly have committed an offence under environmental law.
Engagement with officers is often aggressive and information can be hard to
come by to assist with an investigation and WISE officers have experienced this
during the pilot.
A particular engagement in Bournemouth led to the WISE officer calling the
Police as he feared for his and other resident’s safety when an offender followed
him back to his vehicle and made a number of false accusations. Residents in
the locality witnessed the incident and some tried to intervene, while also
advising they were upset at the ongoing situation with fly-tipping in their road and
the officer had to calmly manage this situation prior to the arrival of the Police.
Delays in Response
20. There have been a number of cases where a delay to clearance of waste has
resulted from the investigating officer being unable to immediately secure
evidence from a fly-tip. While this is limited in number, this remains a concern
and will be an ongoing challenge while reports are increasing.
Collation of Evidence
21. Many residents who report incidents do so anonymously, meaning evidence
collection is challenging unless incriminating evidence is found within the waste.
While WISE officers use experience and initiative to try to identify offenders, this
is a challenge that will likely continue.
22. Witnesses of incidents are usually reluctant to agree to attend Court, meaning
some cases will have to be dropped without penalty to an offender. WISE
officers have offered support and confidence to many witnesses, but many still
refuse to commit to providing evidence that would be key to proving a case to
the level required and therefore a fine, and/or prosecution, cannot be carried out.
Public Feedback

Page 13

23. Public concern is an expected and real challenge to this pilot. A number of news
stories have appeared since the start of this pilot prompted by someone found
guilty of an offence who disagrees and raising the matter as public interest
through the media.
24. This is a risk to the reputation of the pilot and the Council and Regulatory
Managers have worked hard to minimise the impact of this due to the positive
outcomes the pilot has achieved to date and the wider benefits to the Council’s
area.
25. It is challenging to counter arguments that WISE officers have been too quick to
serve an FPN, which is often the headline, due to data protection rules that
Council officers are duty bound to comply with. The manager of the
Environmental Protection Team investigates all complaints and cases raised to
the media and has ensured best practice has been followed, commenting to this
effect. However, this has not necessarily been accepted by others and can be
difficult to justify without revealing information protected under data-protection
rules.
26. Officers expect this challenge to continue, although where a case is beginning
to feel contentious by WISE officers, they will seek clarity and instruction from
the manager of the pilot. It is also worth noting that commentators to the news
stories to date have broadly supported enforcement action against those who
mismanage waste and feedback from residents who have made the report is that
they are pleased to know that enforcement action is now being taken on flytippers.
Legacy Arrangements
27. Difference in Legacy Authority arrangements have led to some decisions being
reversed due to lack of understanding and practice formed over a number of
years.
28. This has been particularly challenging in Bournemouth Town Centre where some
waste from businesses has been collected by a private contractor engaged by
the Council many years ago to remove commercial waste left out on streets.
Hence the expectation of many businesses in this locality is that they have been
complying with their legal duties. While the practice does not absolve a business
of their duties, WISE and Council officers agreed that issuing an FPN to certain
businesses was inappropriate initially and if businesses subsequently employed
a waste contractor to manage their waste lawfully, no further action would be
taken.
Complaints
29. The manager of the pilot has experience in dealing with complaints against
enforcement officers and this challenge was expected during this pilot.
30. Understandably, where people have committed an offence, either knowingly or
otherwise, many are angry and upset that they are being penalised and it was
anticipated that this pilot would lead to complaints against the conduct of WISE
officers.
31. With a simple representation and complaints procedure, many grievances have
been managed quickly and effectively with only 7 escalating to the Council officer
managing the pilot. On review of bodycam footage and investigation into the
specifics of the case, 1 case was upheld and 1 partially upheld. This is likely
however to remain a challenge.
Expectation Management

Page 14

32. Press enquiries and concerns raised by various stakeholders leads to time lost
in other key areas of service provision. Also, considerable resource is taken by
the refusal of some offenders to acknowledge they have been found to have
committed an offence and thereby continuing with a complaint, despite
subsequent findings through an investigation proving process and practice to be
sound.
33. As the pilot has progressed, suggestions have been made that WISE focuses on
education and tackling the reasons behind fly-tipping. This is outside of the
scope of the current pilot and such expectations can be difficult and timeconsuming to manage.
CCTV
34. As well as the expectation management difficulties mentioned above, CCTV is
viewed as one of the main preventions and solutions to reducing fly-tipping.
While this may act as a deterrent and forms part of the solution, it is not a costeffective or simple solution to help support this pilot or any future fly-tipping
response work.
35. Officers have witnessed a number of individuals recorded dumping waste at
various points across BCP Council and unfortunately cannot identify individuals
by just their face or other characteristics. Where a vehicle is involved, we have
seen significant success with identifying a registered keeper and commencing
enquiries from there, but in some areas, it has neither prevented the incident or
provided sufficient evidence to identify the offender. However, expectations are
that CCTV will reduce fly-tipping incidents and result in a penalty for those
responsible.
36. Options to increase the CCTV resource within the Council to support this work
are considered in the Options Appraisal below.
Waste Strategy Review
37. Many of the operational challenges outlined above are likely to continue, and in
any case would be present with any enforcement solution to fly-tipping and flyposting. The successes and outcomes to date are keenly felt by operational
officers of the Council and the increased confidence with which residents feel
that action will be taken if they report offences.
38. It is clear, however, there is scope to address the wider reasons behind flytipping. This is not a simple issue and National seminars, and conferences
regularly take place to seek learning and best practice from colleagues across
the country. Despite limited successes, incidents continue to rise across the
Country.
39. A review of future options for an outsourced contract due to end in March 2023,
which includes bulky waste collection services, is due to commence shortly. The
wider review of the Council’s Waste Strategy is also anticipated to commence
during 2022/23. This is, however, dependent on the Government’s national
waste strategy and associated legislation, which has been delayed. We are now
waiting for a third consultation on the final proposals, which is anticipated in
Spring 2022.

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16

Performance and Data
All data is from 31 August 2021 to 7 March 2022
Officer hours worked: 1521 hr 16 mins
Table A: Fly-tipping
Investigations

1,538

FPNs
served/paid Breakdown
54 x Business fly-tipping
104 x Domestic fly-tipping
3 x Household duty of care (failure to ensure household
waste has been transferred through an authorised
person/company)
198 / 127 37 x littering (small fly-tips, such as a bag of waste)

Table B: Business
Duty of Care
Inspections

Notice to Provide Evidence
of Waste Agreement

249

206

Table C: Fly-posting
Investigations
10

FPNs served/paid
7/6

FPNs served /
paid

189 / 133

Education
86 (including
engagement work
through
Christmas and
New Year)

NB. Of the total 394 FPNs served, 361 were served on the spot and 33 subsequently by post
Representations and Complaints
To WISE

Escalated to Council

231

7

Findings
5 not upheld
1 partially upheld
1 upheld

NB. Representations are not necessarily complaints and include cases where evidence of
proof has been sent to WISE to prove that an offence has not taken place, such as
presentation of proper waste transfer notes

Page 17

Map of Enforcement Activity

Key
Green-1 incident
Blue 1-10 incidents
Yellow 11-100 incidents
Red 100+ incidents

Page 18

Photographs
Photographs of alleys before and after business inspections and enforcement action

Page 19

Page 20

Equality Impact Assessment: conversation screening tool

Policy/Service under
development/review:

Fly-tipping and Fly-Posting Enforcement

What changes are being made to
the policy/service?

Harmonisation of response to fly-tipping and fly-posting offences
across BCP Council through use of private company at nil cost to
Council

Service Unit:

Communities

Persons present in the
conversation and their
role/experience in the service:

Matthew King, Community Enforcement & Environmental
Protection Manager
Jeff Morley, Regulatory Team Manager
Peter Haikin, Head of Regulatory Services
Stuart Best, Waste & Cleansing Manager
Rebecca Lawry, regulatory Services Equality Champion

Conversation dates:

26/1/21-15/2/21 Reviewed 13/4/22

Residents and community groups of BCP Council
Businesses operating in the BCP Council area
Members of BCP Council
Do you know your current or
Officers within BCP Council in the Regulation, Waste, Parks,
potential client base? Who are the
Events and Seafront teams
key stakeholders?
Residents and community groups within the BCP Council area
Dorset Police
Environment Agency
All groups have a need for a consistent Council response to
Do different groups have different
offenders of fly-tipping and fly-posting. Some groups may not
needs or experiences in relation to
understand duty of care rules for waste and communication and
the policy/service?
education forms part of the policy change.
Yes, predominantly in a positive manner, with the aim of the
Will the policy or service change
change to policy resulting in less money and resource being spent
affect any of these service users?
on clearances of waste and fly-posting and more being spent in
other priority areas.
[If the answer to any of the questions above is ‘don’t know’ then you need to gather more
evidence and do a full EIA. The best way to do this is to use the Capturing Evidence form]
What are the benefits or positive
Money and resource spent on dealing with the results of flyimpacts of the policy/service change tipping adversely affect all residents and businesses of the
on current or potential service
Council and if this reduces as is hoped, this is a benefit and
users?
positive impact for all groups.
There is a potential impact on residents who may not fully
What are the negative impacts of the understand duty of care for waste. Each case will be considered
policy/service change on current or
fully to understand if someone has been exploited due to a
potential service users?
protected characteristic by a rogue individual or trader before
considering formal action.
Yes, to a limited degree, with employees within Communities
having to learn more about enforcement measures against
offenders of fly-tipping and fly-posting. It should also be a positive
Will the policy or service change
change for employees of Cleansing and Waste who spend some
affect employees?
of their time clearing waste dumped by offenders, which adds to
existing heavy workloads. They will be pleased to see offenders
are held to account.
Will the policy or service change
Yes, as above in a positive manner, except for offenders who do
affect the wider community?
not accept education or knowingly act in an unlawful way

Page 21

What mitigating actions are planned
or already in place for those
negatively affected by the
policy/service change?
Summary of Equality Implications:

A communications strategy to help increase knowledge of rules
around waste management and fly-posting will be implemented
prior to the launch of the new service and each case will be
considered fully to understand if someone has been exploited due
to a protected characteristic by a rogue individual or trader before
considering formal action.
There are no adverse effects on protected groups and all
communities should benefit long term from reduced environmental
crime with the success of this pilot.

For any questions on this, please contact the Policy and Performance Team by emailing
performance@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

Page 22

Agenda Item 8
CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY OVERVIEW
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Report subject

Forward Plan

Meeting date

19 May 2022

Status

Public Report

Executive summary

The Corporate and Community Overview and Scrutiny Committee
is asked to consider and identify work priorities for its next meeting
pending a wider review of its forward plan at a future meeting.

Recommendations

It is RECOMMENDED that:
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee discuss and agree work
priorities for its next meeting, for subsequent publication in a
Forward Plan.

Reason for
recommendations

The Council’s Constitution requires all Overview and Scrutiny
Committees to set out proposed work in a Forward Plan which will
be published with each agenda.

Page 23

Portfolio Holder(s):

N/A

Corporate Director

Graham Farrant, Chief Executive

Report Authors

Lindsay Marshall, Overview and Scrutiny Specialist

Wards

N/A

Classification

For Decision

Ti t l e:

Background
1.

All Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) Committees are required by the Constitution to
consider work priorities and set these out in a Forward Plan. When approved, this
should be published with each agenda. The Corporate and Community O&S
Committee is asked to discuss and agree work priorities for its next meeting (date
tbc at time of writing this report).

2.

The Council made changes to the O&S function on 10 May, assigning areas of
responsibility from the previous O&S Board to the newly formed Corporate and
Community O&S Committee and Place O&S Committee. For councillors’
information, a breakdown of the areas of responsibility across all O&S committees is
attached at Appendix 1 to this report.

3.

Given the recent changes to the O&S function, the Committee is provided with an
outline of priorities that had been previously identified for scrutiny by the O&S Board
in its forward plan. The items that align to the areas of responsibility for the
Corporate & Community O&S Committee are identified in Appendix 2. Councillors
are asked to take account of this list, along with the recently published Cabinet
Forward Plan and any other suggestions for scrutiny when considering its priority
work areas for the next meeting. The Cabinet Forward Plan is attached at Appendix
3.

4.

The Committee will be asked to consider longer term priorities for its forward plan at
a future meeting in order to identify, and appropriately plan for, work priorities for the
remainder of the municipal year.

BCP Constitution and process for agreeing Forward Plan items
5.

The Constitution requires that the Forward Plan of O&S Committees shall consist of
work aligned to the principles of the function. The BCP Council O&S function is
based upon six principles:
1. Contributes to sound decision making in a timely way by holding decision makers
to account as a ‘critical friend’;
2. A member led and owned function – seeks to continuously improve through selfreflection and development.
3.Enables the voice and concerns of the public to be heard and reflected in the
Council’s decision-making process.

Page 24

4. Engages in decision making and policy development at an appropriate time to be
able to have influence.
5.Contributes to and reflects the vision and priorities of the council.
6. Agility – able to respond to changing and emerging priorities at the right time with
flexible working methods.
6.

The O&S Committee may take suggestions from a variety of sources to form its
Forward Plan. This may include suggestions from members of the public, officers of
the Council, Portfolio Holders, the Cabinet and Council, members of the O&S
Committee, and other councillors who are not on the Committee.

7.

The Constitution allows for additional items of scrutiny inquiry work to be
commissioned by each O&S Committee, in addition to work undertaken in a
committee meeting setting. The Constitution requires that the O&S Committees take
into account the resources, including Councillor availability, Officer and financial
resources, available to support their proposals for items of O&S work. This will
ensure that there is appropriate resource availability across the whole O&S function,
and that any work established can be completed in a timely way with effective
outcomes.

8.

An O&S commission may take the form of a working group or task and finish group,
for example. Full detail on the types of work that may be commissioned by an O&S
Committee are outlined within the Constitution. Bodies commissioned by an O&S
Committee may have conferred upon them the power to act on behalf of the parent
body in considering issues within the remit of the parent body and making
recommendations directly to Portfolio Holders, Cabinet, Council or other bodies or
people within the Council or externally as appropriate.

9.

The Constitution requires that all suggestions for O&S work will be accompanied by
detail outlining the background to the issue suggested, the proposed method of
undertaking the work and likely timescale associated, and the anticipated outcome
and value to be added by the work proposed. No item of work shall join the Forward
Plan of the O&S Committee without an assessment of this information.

Summary of financial implications
10. When establishing a Forward Plan, the Constitution requires the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee to take into account the resources, including Councillor
availability, Officer and financial resources, available to support their proposals.
Summary of legal implications
11. The Council’s Constitution requires all Overview and Scrutiny Committees to set out
proposed work in a Forward Plan which will be published with each agenda.
Summary of human resources implications
12. There are no human resources implications arising from this report.
Summary of sustainability impact
13. There are no sustainability implications arising from this report.
Summary of public health implications
14. There are no public health implications arising from this report.

Page 25

Summary of equality implications
15. Any member of the public may make suggestions for Overview and Scrutiny work.
Further detail on this process is included with Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution.
Summary of risk assessment
16. There is a risk of challenge to the Council if the Constitutional requirement to
establish and publish a Forward Plan is not met.
Background papers
None.
Appendices
Appendix 1 – BCP Overview and Scrutiny Committees – areas of responsibility
Appendix 2 – Overview and Scrutiny Board Forward Plan items – priorities identified for
2022/23
Appendix 3 - Cabinet Forward Plan published 26 April 2022

Page 26

Corporate and Community Overview
and Scrutiny Committee

Place Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

Children’s Services Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Health and Adult Social Care
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

11 Members

11 Members

11 Members

11 Members

CALL-IN WITHIN REMIT
PORTFOLIO AREAS
Finance and Transformation (full)
Finance, transformation of all council services
Council Priorities and Delivery (partial)
Delivery of council services and operations

Page 27

Development, Growth and Regeneration
(partial)
Economic development, communication
Culture and Vibrant Places (full)
Culture, place animation, events, libraries,
museums and activities.
Community Safety & Regulatory Services
(partial)
Community safety, regulatory services, licensing
operations
Tourism and Active Health (partial)
Leisure services, sport, tourism operations
Plus Statutory Crime and Disorder Scrutiny

CALL-IN WITHIN REMIT
PORTFOLIO AREAS
Development, Growth and Regeneration
(partial)
Regeneration, House building, strategic planning
and policies.
Community Safety and Regulatory Services
(partial)
Planning operations

CALL-IN WITHIN REMIT

CALL-IN WITHIN REMIT

PORTFOLIO AREAS

PORTFOLIO AREAS

Children and Young People (full)
Children’s Services

People and Homes (partial)
Adult social care

Council Priorities and Delivery (partial)
Education

Tourism and Active Health (partial)
Public health

Plus to act as the Council’s Statutory
Education Committee

Plus Statutory Health Scrutiny

People and Homes (partial)
Housing services
Council Priorities and Delivery (partial)
Cleaner, Greener Safer agenda
Environment and Place (full)
Parks, beaches, place services, flooding, waste
services
Sustainability and transport (full)
Sustainability and transport
Plus Statutory Flood Risk Management
Scrutiny
CHAIRS AND VICE CHAIRS MEET REGULARLY TO MAINTAIN OVERSIGHT OF THE FUNCTION

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28

Appendix 2
Overview and Scrutiny Board Forward Plan items – priorities identified for 2022/23

Background
The below items were included within the Overview and Scrutiny Board Forward Plan, as
updated following its meeting following its meeting on 4 April 2022. Following the Council
decision to alter the structure of the Overview and Scrutiny function the items have been
aligned to the agreed remits of the newly formed Overview and Scrutiny Committees relating
to ‘Place’ matters and ‘Corporate & Community’ matters.
* identifies items earmarked for the initial meetings of the new Overview and Scrutiny
committees
Corporate and Community Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Cabinet items, identified for scrutiny from a current or previous publication of the Cabinet
Forward Plan:












Fly- tipping and fly- posting enforcement pilot review *
Potential Transfer of Play sites and other BCP assets to Christchurch Town
Council*
Commercialisation of Beach Hut Assets through Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV)
Wholly or Majority Owned by the Council *
Adoption of Ducking Stool Walk
Crime and Disorder reduction strategy
Thistle Hotel, Poole Quay - Lease restructure
Pay and reward - New Terms and Conditions of Employment
BCP Economic Development Strategy
Cultural development in BCP
Russell Coates Arts Gallery Museum Governance Report
Library strategy

Items proposed by non-Executive members:









Transformation *
Enforcement Working Group – suggested date for work to commence September
(potential joint working group spanning ‘Corporate & Community’ and ‘Place’ O&S
Committees depending on breadth of scope)
Review of the Domestic Abuse Strategy and Delivery Plan (due around now)
The Big Plan
Council Complaints Procedure
BCP Council Area BIDs
Council’s Use of Digital
Crime and Disorder scrutiny – statutory annual requirement

Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Cabinet items, identified for scrutiny from a current or previous publication of the Cabinet
Forward Plan:

Page 29









BCP Future places Ltd – Regeneration update *
South Part of Beach Road Car Park *
BDC business plan
Poole Regeneration update
Western Gateway Subnational Transport Body (STB) - Strategic Transport Plan
Bereavement Services Business Plan Update
Beach Hut Policy

Items proposed by non-Executive members:











Winter Gardens report *
Planning System improvements*
Play in BCP *
Severe Weather Protocol (Homeless)
Selective Licensing
Anti-Social Behaviour – Housing
Development of the BCP Local Plan – working group (in hiatus)
Tree strategy Working Group – Commencement needs to fit in with the proposed
development (was advised summer to Autumn 2022)
Enforcement Working Group – suggested date for work to commence September
(potential joint working group spanning ‘Corporate & Community’ and ‘Place’ O&S
Committees depending on breadth of scope)
Green Credentials – annual recurring report

Page 30

CABINET FORWARD PLAN – 1 MAY 2022 TO 31 AUGUST 2022
(PUBLICATION DATE – 26 April 2022)

What is the
subject?

Page 31

Joint Archive
Service Revised InterAuthority
Agreement

Fly-tipping and
Fly-Posting
Enforcement
Pilot Review

What is the purpose
of the issue?

Is this a
Key
Decision?

Decision
Maker and
Due Date

Wards

To update the existing
IAA to reflect Local
Government
Reorganisation and to
streamline and
modernise its
governance
arrangements
To update members
and provide
recommendations for
the future regarding the
fly-tipping and flyposting enforcement
service currently
provided by WISE

No

Cabinet

All Wards

25 May 2022

No

Cabinet
25 May 2022

Who are the
key
stakeholders to
be consulted
before the
decision is
made?
The Joint
Archives
Advisory Board
(JAAB)

What is the
consultation
process and
period

Scheduled
advisory board
meeting

Officer writing the
report

Is the report
likely to be
considered in
private (i.e., it
contains
confidential or
exempt
information)?

Matti Raudsepp

Open

Matthew King

Open

What is the
subject?

Baiter Sluice
Channel
Renewal

Page 32

What is the purpose
of the issue?

Is this a
Key
Decision?

Decision
Maker and
Due Date

The engineered
channel at Baiter
Harbourside Park
which allows water to
flow between the Poole
Park Lagoon and
Parkstone Bay has
come to the end of its
serviceable life. The
sluice channel is
presently a safety
concern, and has been
cordoned off except for
non-motorised access.
The purpose of this
report is to request that
Cabinet allocates
funding in line with the
specialist report and
Officer
recommendations, to
progress the design
through to preconstruction, and
subsequently
construction to: replace
the sluice channel;
upgrade the sluice
channel; and, improve
the localised drainage
system at Keyhole
Bridge (subject to
appropriate consents).

Yes

Cabinet
25 May 2022

Wards

Who are the
key
stakeholders to
be consulted
before the
decision is
made?

Parkstone; The
Poole Town Environment
Agency, Natural
England, Marine
Management
Organisation,
Poole Harbour
Commissioners,
Wessex Water,
Network Rail,
BCP FCERM
Inland Flood
Risk Manager,
BCP Parks
Operations
Team, BCP TCF
cycle and
footway
improvements
delivery team

What is the
consultation
process and
period

Officer writing the
report

Is the report
likely to be
considered in
private (i.e., it
contains
confidential or
exempt
information)?

Peter Christie

Open

What is the purpose
of the issue?

Is this a
Key
Decision?

Decision
Maker and
Due Date

Wards

Our Museum:
Poole Museum
Redevelopment
Programme

Update on Poole
Museum development
programme, agreement
for additional CIL and
prudential borrowing
proposal and
confirmation of
timetable for accessing
both.

Yes

Cabinet

Home to School This comes back to CS
O and S and Cabinet
Transport
post consultation (pre
consultation reports to
CS O and S and
Cabinet in Sept)

No

Page 33

What is the
subject?

Officer writing the
report

Is the report
likely to be
considered in
private (i.e., it
contains
confidential or
exempt
information)?

Poole Town

Alison Smith,
Michael Spender

Open

All Wards

Rachel Gravett,
Sarah Rempel

Open

25 May 2022

Who are the
key
stakeholders to
be consulted
before the
decision is
made?

What is the
consultation
process and
period

Council
12 Jul 2022

Children's
Services
Overview and
Scrutiny
Committee
7 Jun 2022
Cabinet
22 Jun 2022

What is the
subject?

BCP
Futureplaces
Ltd Regeneration
update

What is the purpose
of the issue?

To seek approval to a
revised funding
structure and updated
Company Business
Plan.

Page 34

To present to and be
adopted by Cabinet a
harmonised set of
Cemeteries Rules &
Regulations for BCP
Council, in accordance
with the local
Government Act 1972
and the Local
Authorities Cemeteries
Order 1977
This report is for
Transforming
Cities Fund End information purposes
of Year Report only and not for
decision. The report
sets out the spend to
date following the End
of Year Report to the
DfT as part of the DfT
funding requirements.
BCP Council
Cemeteries
Rules &
Regulations
adoption

Is this a
Key
Decision?

Decision
Maker and
Due Date

Wards

No

Cabinet
22 Jun 2022

Who are the
key
stakeholders to
be consulted
before the
decision is
made?

What is the
consultation
process and
period

Officer writing the
report

Is the report
likely to be
considered in
private (i.e., it
contains
confidential or
exempt
information)?

All Wards

Sarah Longthorpe

Open

Council
12 Jul 2022

Yes

Cabinet
22 Jun 2022

All Wards

Andy McDonald

Open

No

Cabinet
22 Jun 2022

All Wards

Claire Clark

Open

What is the
subject?

What is the purpose
of the issue?

Decision
Maker and
Due Date

Wards

No

Cabinet
22 Jun 2022

All Wards

No

Cabinet
22 Jun 2022

Who are the
key
stakeholders to
be consulted
before the
decision is
made?

What is the
consultation
process and
period

Officer writing the
report

Is the report
likely to be
considered in
private (i.e., it
contains
confidential or
exempt
information)?

Adam Richens

Open

Bridget Webber

Open

Page 35

Merdium Term This report:
Financial Plan Presents the latest
(MTFP) Update medium-term financial
plan (MTFP) of the
council to reflect
government
announcements since
the February 2021
budget report and
updated assumptions.
Proposes a financial
strategy to support the
delivery of a balanced
budget for 2022/23
Proposes a budget
planning process and
timeline for key
financial reports.
To update Cabinet on
LGR Three
Year Stocktake progress with LGR

Is this a
Key
Decision?

What is the purpose
of the issue?

Is this a
Key
Decision?

Decision
Maker and
Due Date

Potential
Transfer of Play
sites and other
BCP assets to
Christchurch
Town Council

To consider potential
Transfer of Play sites
and other BCP assets
to Christchurch Town
Council, the terms of
the council's offer and
any implications or
liabilities for the council
in doing so

No

Cabinet
22 Jun 2022

To present options for
approval for
transferring in-scope
beach hut assets
across to an SPV
subsidiary created by
the Council as parent
company.

Yes

Cabinet
22 Jun 2022

Page 36

What is the
subject?

Commercialisati
on of Beach Hut
Assets through
Special
Purpose
Vehicle (SPV)
Wholly or
Majority Owned
by the Council

Council
12 Jul 2022

Wards

Who are the
key
stakeholders to
be consulted
before the
decision is
made?

Christchurch Christchurch
Town Council
Town;
Commons;
Mudeford,
Stanpit &
West
Highcliffe

Beach Hut
Associations

What is the
consultation
process and
period

Officer writing the
report

There is a
Alan Ottaway
statutory
process to be
followed for the
Disposal of
Public Open
Space, which
will be
undertaken prior
to reporting.
Engagement
Chris Saunders
through
communications
with Beach Huts
Associations
and attendance
at Beach Hut
Association
AGM's.

Is the report
likely to be
considered in
private (i.e., it
contains
confidential or
exempt
information)?
Open

Open

What is the
subject?

What is the purpose
of the issue?

Support Service Determine future
Contract 2013 options for the Support
Services Contract 2013
- Watson CCS Limited
which ends on 31
March 2023. Service
currently supports inhouse cleansing teams.

Is this a
Key
Decision?

Decision
Maker and
Due Date

Wards

No

Cabinet
27 Jul 2022

All Wards

Who are the
key
stakeholders to
be consulted
before the
decision is
made?

What is the
consultation
process and
period

Officer writing the
report

Is the report
likely to be
considered in
private (i.e., it
contains
confidential or
exempt
information)?

Simon Legg

Open

Page 37

What is the
subject?

What is the purpose
of the issue?

Page 38

Appropriation and
South Part of
disposal for housing (in
Beach Road
Car Park Poole accordance with its
local plan allocation)
subject to an approved
and adopted
Development Brief by
the Local Planning
Authority, being in
place.

Is this a
Key
Decision?

Decision
Maker and
Due Date

Wards

Who are the
key
stakeholders to
be consulted
before the
decision is
made?

Yes

Cabinet
27 Jul 2022

Canford
Cliffs

Portfolio holders
for
1.Regeneration,
Economy &
Strategic
Planning, 2.
Tourism,Leisure
Culture,
3.Community
Safety and 4.
Transport &
Sustainability.

Council
13 Sep 2022

What is the
consultation
process and
period

Officer writing the
report

The disposal
Irene Ferns
approval is
sought, subject
to an adopted
Development
brief being in
place, and if
Cabinet give the
Local Planning
Authority (LPA)
approval to
consult the
public on the
Development
brief, then all
portfolio holders
local residents
association and
other interested
parties from the
public will have
an opportunity
to make
representations
through the
LPA's 6 week
public
consultation
process.

Is the report
likely to be
considered in
private (i.e., it
contains
confidential or
exempt
information)?
Open

What is the purpose
of the issue?

Is this a
Key
Decision?

Decision
Maker and
Due Date

Wards

Children's
Services Early
Help Offer

Summary of findings
and recommendations
from an ongoing review
of our current Early
Help services

No

Cabinet
27 Jul 2022

All Wards

To seek approval for
the Bournemouth
Development Company
Business Plan, extend
some contractual
"Option Execution
Dates" in relation to
specific sites and
provide an update in
relation to the
independent Local
Partnerships Review.

No

Cabinet
28 Sep 2022

Bournemout
h Central

Page 39

What is the
subject?

Bournemouth
Development
Company LLP
Business Plan

Who are the
key
stakeholders to
be consulted
before the
decision is
made?

What is the
consultation
process and
period

Officer writing the
report

Is the report
likely to be
considered in
private (i.e., it
contains
confidential or
exempt
information)?

Zafer Yilkan

Open

Sarah Longthorpe

Open

What is the
subject?

Christchurch
Bay and
Harbour
FCERM
Strategy

Page 40

What is the purpose
of the issue?

Is this a
Key
Decision?

Decision
Maker and
Due Date

Wards

Bournemouth,
Christchurch and Poole
Council (BCP) and
New Forest District
Council (NFDC) are
working together with
the Environment
Agency to produce a
new strategy to protect
coastal communities
from tidal flooding and
erosion risk. It will
guide how the frontage
from Hengistbury Head
to Hurst Spit,
encompassing
Christchurch Harbour,
will be sustainably
managed for the next
100 years.

No

Cabinet
12 Apr 2023

Christchurch
Town; East
Southbourn
e & Tuckton;
Highcliffe &
Walkford;
Mudeford,
Stanpit &
West
Highcliffe

Who are the
key
stakeholders to
be consulted
before the
decision is
made?
Landowners,
BCP residents,
businesses,
organisations,
BCP services

What is the
consultation
process and
period

Officer writing the
report

Several levels
Catherine Corbin,
of public
Alan Frampton,
enegagement
Matt Hosey
and consultation
throughout the
development of
the Strategy
between 2021
and 2023.

Is the report
likely to be
considered in
private (i.e., it
contains
confidential or
exempt
information)?
Open

What is the
subject?

What is the purpose
of the issue?

Is this a
Key
Decision?

Decision
Maker and
Due Date

Pay & Reward New Terms and
Conditions of
Employment

To seek approval for
the Council's new
terms and conditions of
employment, including
new pay and grading
arrangements.

No

Cabinet

Library Strategy To produce a library
strategy across all BCP
libraries
and
the
development
of
libraries
as
neighbourhood hubs.

No

Date to be
confirmed

Page 41
Cabinet
Date to be
confirmed

Wards

Who are the
key
stakeholders to
be consulted
before the
decision is
made?
Proposals have
been developed
through a
process of
collective
bargaining with
recognised
Trade Unions.
CMB, directorate
leadership
teams and
employees have
also been
consulted at
various stages
during the
project and
informed the
development of
proposals

What is the
consultation
process and
period

Officer writing the
report

Is the report
likely to be
considered in
private (i.e., it
contains
confidential or
exempt
information)?

Lucy Eldred, Jon
Burrows

Fully exempt

Open

What is the
subject?

Adoption of
Ducking Stool
Walk,
Christchurch

Page 42

Western
Gateway Subnational
Transport Body
(STB)- Strategic
Transport Plan

What is the purpose
of the issue?

Is this a
Key
Decision?

Decision
Maker and
Due Date

To consider a request
from Priory Mews
Management Company
for BCP Council to
adopt the land and
structures forming the
Public Right of Way
known as Ducking
Stool Walk

No

Cabinet

To advise Cabinet of
the STB's intention to
adopt its Strategic
Transport Plan at its
Board meeting in
December 2020
subject to agreement of
all its consituent
members. This is also
subject to the outcome
of an active
consultation period
which will close on 31st
July 2020.

No

Date to be
confirmed

Cabinet
Date to be
confirmed

Wards

Who are the
key
stakeholders to
be consulted
before the
decision is
made?

What is the
consultation
process and
period

Christchurch Leader of the
Council (Cllr
Town
Drew Mellor);
Portfolio Holder
(Cllr Mark
Anderston);
Ward
Councillors (Cllr
Peter Hall and
Cllr Mike Cox);
All Wards Portfolio Holders
for Transport
and
Infrastructure
and Environment
and Climate
Change.

Informal
consultation to
inform the
report

Officer writing the
report

Is the report
likely to be
considered in
private (i.e., it
contains
confidential or
exempt
information)?

Alan Ottaway

Open

A public
Julian McLaughlin,
consultation is
Ewan Wilson
active until 31
July 2020
https://westerng
atewaystb.org.u
k/

Open

What is the
subject?

Children's
Safeguarding
Arrangements

What is the purpose
of the issue?

To present reviewed
arrangements

Is this a
Key
Decision?

Decision
Maker and
Due Date

Wards

No

Cabinet

All Wards

What is the
consultation
process and
period

Officer writing the
report

Is the report
likely to be
considered in
private (i.e., it
contains
confidential or
exempt
information)?

Rachel Gravett

Open

Children's
Services
Overview and
Scrutiny
Committee

Page 43

Dates to be
confirmed

Bournemouth
Learning Centre
conversion to a
Special School
Campus Capital budget
approval
Poole
Regeneration
Update

Who are the
key
stakeholders to
be consulted
before the
decision is
made?

To update Cabinet and
the public on projects
and activities in Poole
Town Centre

No

Cabinet
Date to be
confirmed

No

Cabinet
Date to be
confirmed

All Wards

Poole Town relevant
stakeholders to
the Poole
Regeneration
Programme

Open

Chris Shephard

Open

What is the
subject?

Thistle Hotel,
Poole Quay Lease
restructure

Page 44

Crime &
Disorder
Reduction
Strategy

What is the purpose
of the issue?

Is this a
Key
Decision?

Decision
Maker and
Due Date

Wards

To seek authorisation
to restructure a lease to
enable a third party
Hotel/Residential
development to
proceed

No

Cabinet

Poole Town

To agree & adopt a
BCP Crime & Disorder
Reduction Strategy

No

Who are the
key
stakeholders to
be consulted
before the
decision is
made?

What is the
consultation
process and
period

Officer writing the
report

Is the report
likely to be
considered in
private (i.e., it
contains
confidential or
exempt
information)?

Rebecca Bray

Open

Andrew Williams

Open

Date to be
confirmed

Cabinet
Date to be
confirmed

All Wards

Community
Safety
Partnership

